
) 

) 

) 

) 

'>'"'5 ... ,t> 

ilENATE 
ENVIOON.MENT J\ND PUDLIC RESOUICES O)MMI'l"11EE 

.March 21, 1975 

The ~ting was called to order in !born #213 at 1:30 p.m. on Frid.:1y, March 21, 1975. 
Senator 'I'horrus Wilson was in the chair. 

PRESENT: Senator Thoims Wilson 
Senator Carl Dodge 
Senator Gary Sheerin 
Senator Richard Blakarore 
Senator Richard Bryan 
Senator Joe Neal 
Senator Mary <Djack 

CJIHERS PRESEN'r: See Exhibit "A". 

Senator Wilson explained that the purpose of the rreeting was for the oorrmi ttee to dis­
cuss s.n. 44, ~, S.J.R. 13, S.B. 326, and 327. There was to be no testinony taken. 

Senate Bill 254 was discussErl first. Senator Wilson said the o.o fundarrental issues 
to discuss were 1) question of double majority negative and 2) question of whether to 
expand the rrernbership of the agency. He said sorre other things to oonsider \~uld be 
the public Wl..'"lrks, the traffic problem, and a transportation plan. Senator Wilson said 
public works should oonform to a master plan. Senator Bryan said that IX:>uglas County 
had subr.ri.tted that loop plan. He said it was his understand.ing that they have been 
holding off because they have been trying to get California's concurrence. The oom­
p::>sition of the California counter:;>art is so o::mstructed that they are never going to 
agree on anything that provides for an additional bypass, the argurrEI1t being that any 
bypass is going to increase pressure for developrrent of the lake and that is what 
California is resisting. Senator Bryan said if that was true he \\Ould like to put in 
a public \\Orks plan that requires bi-state ratification. Senator Wilson said it should 
be in oonformance with whatever plan is established. He said maybe you should not tam­
per with the ca:t-,acts structure where you cb not have a pla.Tl. The alternative plans all 
OJntain a loop. ,._ 

450 



) 

) 

) 

) 

3G6 

Senator Wilson said he was not comfortable with the 60 day provision. Senator D:>dge 
said they should have established that early in their regulations the :i;oint at \-.hich 
a prop::>sal is in final fonn. Senator Wilson said he agreed with that. Senator Dodge 
said if by virtue of the fact that there have been projects awroved up there because 
action has not been taken in 60 days, absent.clear regulations, guidelines, and ~efi­
nitions, it seems like t.lle agency itself would corre in and ask for arrendrrents. Sena­
tor Ibdge said he supp::>rted NTRPA two years ago and would like to see only reasonc>.ple 
grCMt.h and expansion at the lake, including gaming casinos. He said one thing that 
had been weak about the proponents presentation is that at no time did the agency it­
self ask for any of these arreOOIYEI1ts. Its been the AD-HOC oonmittee or the legal staff 
asking for them. He said if the Agency does not see fit to corre before the cornnittee 
to ask for ammdrrents based on experience and frustrations, it doesn I t nalre for a ver:y 
strong case to am;nd the oornpact. Senator Dodge said as far as he was roncerned they 
presented a very weak case. Senator Ibdge also said he wasn I t for adopting sanething 
that would play into the hands of the California Legislature to adopt. He said we 
should not cb anything in Nevada until we have SOI'le idea of what the feeling in Cali­
fornia is. Senator Wilson said that three county irembers of t.l-ie TRPA are against m::xli­
fication of the compact and two state nanbers of TRPA are in favor of m:xlification. 
Senator D:>dge said that Mr. DeRicco supported it but also said they weren't having any 
particular problans with getting the things enacted, their problem is with enforcerrent. 
Senator D:>dge said if he understood Mr. ~Ricca's testinony it wasn't all that nuch of 
a IlEChanical problem as far as getting the actions taken, but the problem was the rrntter 
of enforceirent. He said the provisions they were seeking to arrertl he wasn't sure they 
related to enforceITEnt. Senator Ibdge said he asked Mr. DeRicro and Mr. DeRicco had 
said they had never taken any action, either by :rmjority or unanirrously, to anerrl the 
provisions of the compact. If that is true, Senator Ixx:lge said, it can't be w:>rking 
all that bad. Senator Blakenore said that from the questions he asked they didn't 
seem to be having all that many problens. They seem::d to have had strong growing pains, 
but by Mr. DeRicco's own admission it does work. Ile did question their absenteeism. 
Senator Blakarore said no nuttcr how we change the oompact you can't tell them they 
have to attend, and said he didn't feel that was the business of the comnittee. 

Senator D:>dge said to G'.u:y OWcns that the comnittee was told the agency itself by a 
najority vote md turned down those Jennings and Kahle aH.)lications. Senator TX>d<Jc 
asked Mr. Owens what hapJ:XJncd nechill1ically that PJnnittcd Douglas county to go ahNd 
am grant the applications and start construction. Mr. O,.,cns said that Ibuglas County 
granted the {X'nnits. At the time the Board split najoritics back in July, Mr. Hannah, 
legal rounucl, was of the opinion that by virtue of the conpact the oontracts were ap­
proved and they were able to procecrl. 

·451 

dmayabb
Senate EPR

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
March 21, 1975



) 

) 

) 

) 

Pa<jC '1\..0 
3-21-75 
Environrrcnt and Public Resources Comnittce 

3G7 

Senat.or rxxJge said that if that were true would we, in affect, l~ creating a veto power 
in those types of situations for the State of California. Mr. O.vcns said that was a 
fair statcm::>nt, however, he thought it should be qualified to the e.xtcnt that if a veto 
is going to be' enacted by one najority not agreeing with the other, it \..Ould have to be 
done on SOOD standard. He said it does, in affect, create a rower to veto. Senator 
Ibdge asked Mr. Owens if he knew what grounds on which the agency had approved prior 
ronstruction on Harvey's and Harrah's, why they denied these. Mr. Owens said why the 
califomia delecJation voted against them. Senator D'.Jdgc said he didn't kno..., how the 
vote stood, but wanted to know the grounds. Mr. OWens said that was hard for him to · 
say. He had not ronsulted with the individuals of the California Delegation. There 
was a staff surmary which reccmrrended denial of those two projects. He said it seened 
to him that staff su'lll\3.ry questiored whether the projects met the requisites for height 
variance. Mr. OWens discussed the requirerrents that must be iret for a r.erm:i.t to be 
granted. Senator Ibdge asked if they were irechanically in a position to grant the 
variance. Mr. Owvens said they were pennitted to ao so under. ordinance. It would be 
subject to review and approval of the agency. The variance was approved by !buglas 
County. Senator Ibdge said the reason it went through was because the of the double 
negative aspect. Mr. OWens said acrording to Mr. Hannah's interpretation of the c:onpact 
that was correct. · 

Senator B:ryan said that it was his understanding that the variance involved was the 
height. Mr. OWens said that was rorrect. He said t11ere was a specific section in the 
Lam Use Ordinance dealing with variances. They gra.11ted a height variance at the 
lbuglas County level. Senator B:ryan asked what the situation would have been had there 
been ID variance sought. Mr. <Mens said an administrative penni t is a µ2nni t which must 
be issued in the first instance by t.11e permit issuing authority. In this case it was 
lbuglas County. There are a number of types of uses for which administrative pennits 
nust be issued. One happens to be hotels, rrotels, apart.rrents with rrore than five units, 
am the county issues the administrative permit under certain standards which are set 
forth in a r,articular section of the ordinance. They also issue what is called a variance 
permit if there is a need to vary the standards. These permits, in one awlication, 
c."Oire before the ag-en...--y. It is Mr. <Mens µ>sition that, although others disagree because 
of the wordin:J, that those pennits must be accrued py the agency before tl-iey can becx)rre 
valid µ2rmits at all. Senator Bryan said so there had been no variance am all that was 
required was a administrative pennit. Mr. <Mens said for thesE: b.o projects they \\Ould 
have had to have a variance. Senator B:ryan said assuming there had been ID height pro­
blan. Mr. <Mens said if there had been no height problem it v.ould have been just the 
ordinary administrative pennit. Senator B:ryan asked if that pennit w:>uld have to be 
cleared by the TRPA. Mr. OWens said yes, urrler Section .432 of the ordiance. Senator 
Bryan asked if the california merrbers whJ opposed did so on the basis that the variance 
was inawropriate. Mr. OWens said he presUIIEd that was why they voted against it. 
Again, the staff recorrmm::lation was that they be denied. Mr. OWens said he can only 
assurre they voted following the rerormendations of the staff. Senator B:ryan asked if 
he rould recall what the staff recamendation was. Mr. Ol.vens said he believed it was 
that the oonditions were not appropriate for a variance in height and in order to have 
a height variance, certain things \..Ould have to be net. Mr. Owens read the oondi tions 
from the a:>Itp:lct. 

over 

dmayabb
Senate EPR



) 

) 

) 

Senator I:bdge asked if structurally the NTRPA, \\hen it was set up bo years ago, had 
to have had approval for original pennits or variances to them either before or after 
Ibuglas County granted them. Mr. Owens said he believed the NTRPA reviewed applica­
tions after they were first issued by the local govenurents. Senaror l))dge asked if 
they had a right to. Mr. Owens said yes, they had a sinple :rmjority type rule becaUSe 
they only had the Nevada delegation of the TRPA and they had voted to pass. Senator 
Bryan said during that time there was a change in the conposition. Mr. Owens said that 
was oorrect. 

Senator Blakenore asked Mr. Owens if he Jmew of any change of legislation by the Cali­
fornia people. .Mr. Owens said all tha California people are concerned. He said from 
what he understocxl and he has been involved with no legislation whatsoever in Califor­
nia, that they are watching and Wu.iting to see what Nevada is going to do. Senator 
Blakenore asked if they were watching with apprehension or with delight. Mr. CWens 
said he thought if you take the viE.W that California is going to take or hopes for an 
environm:mtally strong conpact, he thinks with delight if this bill is approved. Senator 
Blakem::>re asked if t.he compact themselves, with Mr. Owens as their legal oounsel, asked 
for any change from California. Mr. Owens said no and that he would have to def end 
Mr. Ileikka's actions because he was testifying only on what he thought should mwen. 
Senator Blakennre askoo if Mr. Owens md bec>.n directed by any of the ircmbership to con­
tact California and make any change. Mr. Owens said ro, and not the Nevada Le<Jislature 
either. Mr. Owens said he was tere for infonmtion purposes only and rod been asked 
cy Mr. DcRicoo to assist Senator Wilson. He thought it \\01.lld be wise for him to stay 
out of the legislative process. 

Senator r:ndge asked if scroowhcre along the line we oon't create sare other mxhanism 

dmayabb
Senate EPR

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
March 21, 1975



• 

) 

-

Page 'I'hrce 
3-21-75 
Environ1Ta1t and Public Resources Conmittce 

3G8 

in the thing to nnke for regulatory ju:lgerrcnt otrer than by oefault on this votfog 
structure, do we have any assurance that p:>tcnt.L::tlly additional casinos won't be built. 
Mr. Owens said under the way the law rt:JN reads, and if you interpret it litcrcJ.lly, he 
felt that unless you muster exception, and he said he had not said this publ icall y but 
\\Ould say it OCM, trot there \\Ould be no assurance that any structure includinq the 
casiros or hotels could go ahead. One reservation is, and this \o.Ould have to be proved 
by litigation, is an il1E..."9al project, one that docs not oonfonn to the compact. Senator 
Ibdge said he was talking abalt the one mile zone which was, for all intf"_nts and purposes 
specifically exanptcd from chclrrJCS in the zoning. Mr. Ileikka' s testirrony was that you 
could fit five or six nore casinos in that one mile zone besides the two that have bee]) 
granted. Senator D:>dge said he was just wondering if we leave things in the status qu:> 
whether we have any assurance from D::>uglas County or anyrody else that they are not 
going to go ahead and grant those applications. 

Senator Sheerin said he felt that we didn't have any control with the present laws ex­
cept that 'l(,,'OUld be what NTRPA is for. ¼7hether or not we have nore hotels up there should 
be a Nevada decision not a dual majority and California shouldn't have anything to say 
about it. Senator D:xlge said he agree:!, and it should not be a Ibuglas County decision. 
Senator Sheerin said it was not a Ibuglas County decision, and you still have the NTRPA 
to stop the gaming. If we want to strengthen the gaming aspect, then strengthen the 
Nl'RPA. Senator Sheerin said he had legal descriptions of that one mile limit and sorre 
other legal descriptions of the Lake Tahoe land and 'Washoe County land. If you want to 
limit the area of gaming lets strengthen the NTRPA as to the rules and regulations. 
He said we s:tould leave it out of TRPA so we don't get California ID3king our decisions. 
Senator Bryan said what Senator Sheerin was saying made a lot of sense but Mr. DeRicco 
testified that as far as he is concerned t.l-ie comnittee could kill the NTRPA. Senator 
Sheerin said he was also talking about putting in S.B. 254. If you put in S.B. 254, 
you might as well rip up NTRPA because it would have absolutely no function. Senator 
Neal asked if they were not talking alx:>ut an area that held in cormon by Nevada and 
California, particularly the Lake. He said if the Lake becorres polluted then it becomes 
the problem of both political entities to deal with that problem. Senator Sheerin said 
that was exactly right. There is no question that Lake Tahoe is a regional situation 
and that is why Senator Sheerin was not sitting there and trying to convince this legis­
lature to do away with TRPA. 

over 

454 

dmayabb
Senate EPR



) 

) 

) 

) 

369 

Senator Dodge asked Senator Sheerin if he would be willing to change the rcerbership on 
the NTRPA. Senator Sheerin said no. He said the one thing that is cormon to Nevada 
and not to California is the gaming. He said gaming is the only thing that should be 
naintained in Nevada and that should be cbne through the N'I'RPA. Senator Dodge asked 
Senator Sheerin if he would be willing, if we did not do anything with S.B. 254, to 
change the membership on the NTRPA so that the counties did not have the control. He 
said the reason he was asking that was because he was not ronvinced by anything that 
has happened so far that the counties and their representatives are going to exercise 
what he felt is self-discipline that might be necessary at tine to not get an undue pro­
liferation of gaming casinos at the Lake. If that be true and they are scratching each 
other's back, and they are rrotivated primarily by the eoonomic considerations of the 
broader tax base as far as general business activity, then you have no effective review 
of these county decisions. Senator D:xige said he could understand all the arguments 
which he and Senator Sheerin discussed about OJUnty control. Senator Sheerin said he 
hoped Senator Dodge would rerrErnber that one day when we talked alx>ut this. Senator 
lbdge said he was not satisfied that the counties have exercised the kind of discipline 
at ti.nes that Senator Dodge felt they should. He said he didn't think it was out of 
harrl at this point but he wanted to go on record at this point as saying he felt one of 
the worst black eyes that the state coold have is the over developrrent of gaming casinos 
at the Southern end of Lake Tahoe. Senator Sheerin said he agreed with Senator Dodye 
and that it was his own personal opinion that if another gaming casino were reverbuilt 
at the Lake it would have no objection from him. Senator Sheerin said he sirrply wanted 
it to be a Nevada d(.."Cision. Senator Sheerin said when Senator Dodge talked alx>ut the 
eoonomic consideration he included carson City. Senator Sheerin said that could not be 
included because Carsen City does not have a square inch of developed land in the Lake 
Tah::>e basin. He said Washoe County does and DJuglas County does. Senator D'.:Xlge said 
they were not happy with John Mxler. Senator Wilson said that Mr. Meder was instructed 
previously as to how to vote. Senator Wilson said. he \\Ould make an observation that two 
years ac_p this problem cam? up l:ecause they had an apparent problem developing cc:x::>pera­
tion with the oounty rrembers of the TRPA to at least holding developnEnt d:Jwn to the 
JX)int where the agency was able to cope with it. Senator Wilson said there were prob­
lems because they are 20 years too late in cbing sarething. 

Senator Dodge said that Mr. Dayton sat in the oorrmittee two years ag:> and he was asked 
about the traffic problem and Mr. Dayton said there was no traffic problem. Senator 
Sheerin said he did kncM there was a transportc'.ltion plan that IX>uglas County has pre­
sented and h.:i<l on the board for nonths. Senator Wilson said this thing was complicated 
not just by reaction of gaming but by what the city of South Lake Tal-oc is willin<J to do. 
He roid he didn't think they \\Oulcl have been too enthusiastic about alx.>ut c_pjng w.i th~-
44 except for the attitude in conmi ttcc by sarc of those people fran Oou<Jlas O>Unty. 

455 

dmayabb
Senate EPR

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
March 21, 1975



) 

) 

) 

) 

Paye I-bur 
J-21-75 
Envirorumnt and Public Resources 

Senator Wilson said the a:>nmittce had seen a real [X>lu.rization ct.111scll by a couple of 
things-cries that we wlthllraw from 'l'RPJ\ and not CCX>J?Crating. lie said you have to want 
to noke it 'lr.Qrk before it can work. The nanbcrs arc polarized over the rc&pccti vc 
issues. 'l'he danger is th.:i.t ultimately the corrpact can fail. Senator Wilson said the 
question is what do they c1o to stabilize the situation. He said he did not h.:.lvc a:>n­
fidence in the ability, on this problem, of the counties reing able to exercise a 
reasonable rcs1:onsibility. THPA was created years ago for the sane reason th.:1.t two 
california Counties arrl tlX? Ci Ly of South Lake Tahoe and three Nevada counties all 
dealt atooorrously and tJ1ey would oot or could oot, for a variety of reasons, deal and 
solve what has becom2 a complicat-..."=-d bi-state problem involving a river and a basin. 
So TR.PA was created with the principle of rovereignty recause we were roncerncd about 
california interfering with our gaming. 

Gazy Owens said there was a gaming exenption as far as zoning and he still maintained 
there were standards ad'.)pted by the agency in any project received and if they don't 
J'll2et them and its alla.r1cd to go ahead, there is a problem. But if we do need them 
arrl their staff, the action can be set aside. He said he rerognized it takes a court 
action to c1o it. Senator \vilson said he understood but he was just trying to create sone 
pcrspecti ve on why they were dealing with the problem. Senator \vilson said he thought 
it was lack of confidence in the local govemrrent's ability to carry out the mandate 
of the compact particulary vtiere they control the double negative was very encouraging. 
So the proposal was to increase the size of the delegation. Senator Sheerin said he 
didn't think that adding new narbers creates a balance; he t.hought it created an im­
balance. He felt that the present board was a rroderate board because the conmittee 
heard testinony that sore projects get through and sorre projects don't. That rreans 
that sarel::xxly up there is walking a noderate road. Se.'1ator Wilson said he wasn't very 
hawy with the composition of the califomia side either. He said sare of these prople 
had been very irresponsible. Senator Wilson said that when they had hearings and made 
studies on the Truckee River, they didn't have any cooperation at all fran California. 
We said that if they would give up on gaming at the Lake, we will give you sane consid­
eration on your drinking water. Their answer was "go to hell, we're not interested in the 
trade off." Senator Wilson said the problem attended both sides of the basin. He said 
he was mt saying that one side or the other should take care of the problem. He said 
he felt that had overdeveloped on the California side of the Lake. 

over 

456 

dmayabb
Senate EPR



) 

) 

) 

371 

Senator Sheerin said the question was that we have a polarization between environnentalists 
arrl developers. Senator Wilson said no, it wasn't environrrentalists and developers. He 
said he didn't feel that was the polarization. Senator Sreerin said that maybe they dis­
agreed there but he felt that was where the polarization was and we say hCM do we solve 
that problem. Senator Sheerin said in his opinion S.B. 254 does not solve that problem. 
He said the problem was solved by giving TRPA the duty to \\Ork on land trade that do 
rot rost the government or the land owners rroney. Senator Wilson said that was an area 
beyond their rontrol. Senator Sheerin said he didn't think it was entirely beyond their 
oontrol and he thought that if the cormnittee gave the TRPA the duty to get involved 
with land trading, and not only TRPA. He said he realized there were problems with BIM 
and the Forest Service. He said he thought both legislatures and both goven10rs 
arrl the delegations in Washington should be knocking on the President's door telling him 
to get the act of the BLM and the Forest Service together so that we can establish 
SClle kind of foilill.lla and scree kind of value for undeveloped land in the Tahoe basin. 
Senator Wilson said he agreed to that, but objected to to the solution because he didn't 
feel it recognized the realities of the problem. Senator Dodge said he thought they 
WXlld agree on that point if the objection is valid it doesn't hurt to st.inulate from 
any source you can. Senator Wilson suggested maybe they should rrerrorialize Congress. 
Senator Sheerin said he didn't want to rrerrorialize Congress. Senator Bryan asked if they 
wanta:i an arnendrrent to the compact to specifically mandate TRPA to land. Senator Wilson 
said you couldn't preoondition an action by the agency and that he agreed doing it. 
Senator Wilson said the Forest Service is doing a great job. He said it was the BLM 
who was doing the frustrating of the process. 

Senator Sheerin suggested they discuss the NTRPA. Senator D:>dge said as far as he was 
oorx:::erned even if you had to have a confirmation by the governor about these things. 
He thought the problem was that in America we have seen the treIIEndous influence of tll= 
almighty dollar. The people that own the property_ in the one mile zone and in the other 
areas where you have eoorrrous potential, are not going to leave any stone unturned with 
their elected representatives to try and develop that ground and get its highest dollar 
value. Ile said that was all understandable and that it sears to him that if you are 
going to rove any objective evaluation of those things it can only be done through the 
CX>Unty ronmissioncrs. He said he had seen it as along as he had been around. Senator 
Sheerin said he thought you had to keep the original studies in mind that say the THPA 
sh:>uld oo a governnr:mtal agency with general purposes with limited functions designed 
to supplelOC'nt and exx>r<linate but not to replace the local govemncnt. Senator D:xlqc 
said he was talking about prinurily the Nevuili agency and rot the question of giving our 
sovereignty to californi.a. He said he was talking about llCM we uy to bring in sate 
overview tha.t ~ have sooe assuranre at looking at the thing through a little bnxi<ler 
perspective. · 

457 

dmayabb
Senate EPR

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
March 21, 1975



( 

( 

( 

( 

Page Pivc 
3-21-75 
Environm:mt and Public Resources 

Senator Bryan asked Scrotor Sheerin was the jurisdiction of the NTRPA was. Cary 0.~)ns 
said their jurisdiction was over the entire Nevada side of the basin. Senator B1yan 
asko:i if he was suggesting that any project on tll'J Nevada side of the basin would first 
have to go to the ca.mty, then the N'l'RP.l\ and then the 'l'RPA. Mr. 0,.,ens said yes, it was 
designed to rover recreational type establishrrents. Ile said it was designed really to­
ward hotel-casinos. Senator Wilson s.:iid :--tr. <Mens had not rn.:ldc any reference to that. 
Serator Bryan said he realized that; he was outlining the question as to the J:X>Ssibility 
of altering the conposition of N'l'RPA in lieu of tackling the corrpact. Srnator Wilson 
said Senator Bryan's question if it was directed to the jurisdiction of the NI'RPA, it 
was expressly limited. In the TRPA conpact there was certain language of e.xclusion. 
'!he l3nJUage of exclusion in the bi-state cnnpact was used identically to vest and de­
fine the limited jurisdiction of the NTRPA. 

Senator Neal said he wa.ild be in favor of naintaining the designated one mile limit 
provided they ireet the environrrental standards set forth in the corrpact. Senator rxxlge 
said Mr. Heikka indicated that there was room for five or six rrore casinos in the one 
mile zone. Senator r:odge said he couldn't condone what has happened on the California 
side. He said we ought to be taking a look at what we need in Nevada to be doing the 
job properly even thought they may have criticisms. 

Senator Blakemre said he missed part of the rreeting. He said there were rrany people 
at the Lake that have given advice to the cnnmittee and to the corrmittee in California. 
He said he wasn't sure that they in their divine wisdom should be poking our nose in 
arrl cnntinually trying to manipulate in the way the conmi ttee might feel. Senator 
Blakarore said one thing no one had ever rrentioned was they the corrrnittee has mver rret 
with its California counterparts. He said ~rhaps an overview cornni. ttee should re appoin­
ted to look into the compact. They are just waiting to see 1t,,hat Nevada was going to do. 
Senator Blakenore said that whatever Nevada decides will have to go to California and 
then on to Washington. He said they should talk to the governor to fonn an overview 
comnittee that meets every two years to evaluate what is being done by their appointed 
or elected officials to that 1:oard. Senator Wilson said l"E didn't think we had to re 
responsible for California's policy. Senator Blakenore said he didn't nean that they 
sh:Juld be responsible to California but the two could comrunicate at the legislative 
level nore than they have, which is zero. 

bve., 

458 

dmayabb
Senate EPR



1 

) 

) 

) 

373 

Senator Wilson said he agreed with Senator Dodge that he didn't have a lot of confidence 
in the status quo of the COITlfX)Sition. Senator Neal asked how the status quo had been 
changed. Senator Wilson said the policy is paranountly county developrrent. He said they 
had a problem. He said they tend to think that so far as that is concerned we wouldn't 
be resix>nsible to address that problem on the California side. By that he was saying 
if the cormri.ttee wants to broaden the NTRPA in respect to its limited applicatioi:i of 
gaming, we should broaden the bi-state agency and broaden their representation on the 
California side. He said he didn't think they had done a very good job, and discussed 
this briefly. 

Senator Dodge suggested that they have a show of hands, without having a vote, on what 
each comnittee member wants to do with S.B. 254. Senator Wilson said there were things 
they woold want to deal with seperately. He thought there were reservations about the 
public \\Orks part of the bill, about the 60 day provision, etc. Senator Dodge said he 
was talking about any aspect of S.B. 254 and whetler anyone had any appetite to process 
it. 

Senator Wilson said he had an appetite for the bill in that he would like to see ex­
pansion of both california and Nevdda 's delegation, he \\Ould like to look at the voting 
structure. Senator D:xlge said all he wanted was a shew of hands on those who \\Ould 
like to process the bill. Senator Wilson said they would look at bvo issues-increasing 
the delegation size from five to seven. 

Senator Sheerin started off by saying he was oppJsed to that because the original study 
says it will rot displant or displace local govemrrent of the region and will only 
expand and qive the balance to elected people. If you give the balance of four to· 
a.i;:p:>inted, non-elected officials you are taking the balance away from the three elected 
officials. He said he thought the issue was rot only local governrrent but whether or 
rot you trust elected officials. In view of the fact that this agency has the power 
to make laws, Senator Sheerin thought elected officials should have control of the 
agency. 

Senator G:>jack said that you talk about ·elected officials you h.:lve to be very careful 
because you are not talking about people wh::> are elected to 'l'RPl\ in the sane manner in 
which you talk about a person elected to the legislature. She said it was not the direct 
elective process. It is a ccmbination of both elective and appointive. She said she was 
for expanding. 

Senator Blaken:ore was against expansion because there was ro request fran the agency to 
ck> so. 

459 

dmayabb
Senate EPR

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
March 21, 1975



( 

( 

( 

C' 

Pu<JC Six 
3-21-75 
Envirollll'Cnt an<l Public Resources 

Senator Bryan said he w:>uld suH_JOrt sane expansion but he wasn't too sure that S.B. 254 
was the right approach. Ile said he wasn't sure who he \-',O\Jld put on base. Sena tor Wilson 
asked why. ~nator Bryan said that S.B. 254 talks about making the CXJ.XU1sion rorrc from 
a{POintcd offfcials. He said he w:>uld like to explore th:? possibility of giving a 
broader base of their other elective J_X>sitions. 

Senator Dodge said he had already stated that he thought a weak case was made on behalf 
of S.B. 254. For that reason he wouldn't Sl.JHX)rt that pro:[X>nent of the bill. He said 
he didn't feel they were in the right environrrcnt to anend the conpact. On e."-q?loring the 
b:ilance of regional against purely local interests, he w:>uld go for that. 

Senator Neal said he would not l:e in favor of the expansion. He would support Section G 
dealing with the fact that if the ooard cannot cone together there w:>uld be oo action. 

Senator Wilson asked Senator Dodge what his feelings were on NTRPA. Senator Dodge Sclid 
he supJ_X>rted it ThO years ago and still supports the concept. He said if it hasn't been 
w:>rking structurally, the die is cast as far as not havi..11g any checks and balances for 
that agency. Ile said we should try to make it an effective agency. Senator Bryan askai 
if that was an argument for expanding the bi-state agency. Senator Dodge said yes. He 
said he had tried to make it clear that the reason he didn't want to anem the bi-state 
conpact was because they didn't have the right environrrent for · doing so. He again said 
that he was inpressed by the fact that they had had no fornal requests for the arrendrrent, 
by the people on the agency themselves. Senator Wilson said he didn't think they were 
going to ask. He said if california rea:mmenda:l the laws we might think they were pre­
sumptuous. Senator Wilson said that they had requests from the two Nevada IIEITibers of 
the COI11p3.ct. He said they had not had requests from the three county rrernbers and they 
aren't going to ask. They want the current status quo. Senator Dodge said that he 
thought Mr. ~Ricco blE:.W the case when he said that they weren't having any problems 
with the initial inplercentation, rut with the enfcrcerrer.t . He said he understoc--d they 
were having nore trouble with the dual majority voting, the sixty day n1le, and some 
of those things. Se"lator Sheerin said he didn't disfavor doing sorrething with NTRPA. 
Senator Bryan asked Senator Sheerin what kind of expansion would be acceptable. Senator 
Sheerin said he didn't know. Senator DJ<lge said there had been a lot of criticism about 
these type of people will not l:e answerable to an electorate. He said he doubted that 
a system to elect would l:e effective. Senator Ibdge said he bought it the way it was 
not with a ratificaticn py the Cbvernor. 

over 

460 

dmayabb
Senate EPR



( 

( 

( 

( 

3'75 

Sel!lator Neal said Nl'RPA should be elerninated because we have the Gaming Comnissiai to 
control gaming. Senator rn:lge said there was a fallacy about that because :the Gaming 
Comnission does not make the philosophical judgerrent about whether a gaming operation 
ought to go in or not. He said they don't even make an economic judgerrent. He said 
he 1witnessed the developrents in Las Vegas t.l-iat no one said could succeed. The C:.aming 
catmission never makes a ju:lgement. that cannot succeed. They set down certain require­
Ireljlts about acceptability of applicants and that was the end of it. Senator r::odge said 
th'y don't pass judgerrent on the rest of it. Senator Wilson said he didn't think they 
slXDuld and Senator r::odge said he didn't either. Senator Dodge said he didn't feel that 
~ an effective way to handle it. Senator Blakenore said he would have an appetite 
fot retaining NTRPA for those very grounds. He said there was one philosophical hang-
up 

I 
and that was rE!IDving county sovereignty. He said that was as inportant in D:x.lglas 

Co~ty as it is in Nye County or Lincoln County. Senator r::odge said it was except there 
w.3$ a problem. Senator r::odge said they have got a situation that is inpressed so 
strongly with not only regional but actually national interest. He said the questions is 
wh~t is the !X)int at which you have to consider other types of interests other than 
county interest. Senator Blakerrore said he would agree to expand NTRPA but said there 
had been rrention before of getting rrembership out of the county. He said how do we know 
we ,..on' t suddenly have a national asset that is at this t.i.rre not awarent. Senator 
Dodge said yes, by a confirnation by the f'..overnor. Senator B.ryan asked if you would 
give the Governor a veto i;ower. Senator r::odge said yes. Senator Bryan said he was not 
so sure he could buy that. Senator r::odge asked what you \>Ere doing when vou set up 
aFP()inted representatives. Senator B.ryan said they were instructed. Senator Ibdge 
said yes, arrl you could do it that way, so the Governor has a role. Senator Wilson said 
t.1-iat was what S.B. 254 does. Senator r::odge said he knew that, and ma.ybe that was better. 
Senator Wilson Sc:lid S.B. 254 would give the Governor one nore. If the six fail to pick 
the seventh nanbcr, the Governor picks the seventh member. Senator Ibdge said he didn't 
feel there was anything wrong with that. 

Senator r::odge said the point was that they \\ere talking about whether they were in the 
right cnvironrrent to m:tke any an-endm:mts. Senator Wilson asked Senator !Xx1ge what he 
meant by the environm211t not being right. Senator fbdge said the climate isn't right. 
Senator Wilson said he was t.rying to get at what tlw.t was because he felt it was not 
realistic to get into reooITTllC'ndations from the agency. Senator rxxigc asked why not. 
He said they have v..orked with it for five years Md if they arc frustrated in the 
administration of the compuct, · they would be the first ones to coire and say it if it 
\\OS that bad. Senator Dodge said he didn't feel that they ~JOt that kind of showing 

461 

dmayabb
Senate EPR

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
March 21, 1975



) 

) 

) 

) 

Paqe Seven 
3--21-75 
Enviroruocmt and Public ncsourccs 

376 

from the hc:rrinqs recausc who carrc in-the Arr-IIOC's, sare state people, and people rep­
resenting their own thing. I le s.::ii<l the only ffo11bcr of the v~fency tJ1cy heard from was 
Elrro l)(>Jticco a.nd Senator Dx1<_1e felt he hurt the case 1,o1h0.n he said they were h..:1Vin9 no 
problems as far as t11e enacb.1CI1t. Senator Bryan sc1.id he \•7(Jt1ld upprcciate it if there 
wuld be Hore unanimity by th~ rranbcrs of the '.:'!::Pl\ and that. 11~ was surprisCY.1 hy •,1r. 

llcikka's remarks. Senator Hilson said he didn't think t.li.at was crucial hccause by 
the r;taff you are talking a}X)ut policy gesture on the structure and operation of the 
agency. Senator Wilson said if the ~rs of tli.e romni ttce want.al to talk to the 
agency privately, they could. Senator Bryan said he w:is talking illX>Ut not to the 
oo:rmittec but to his avm board. Senator Wilson asked Senator Bryan if he t.l-iought Mr. 
BejJd<a -was goin<:J to be asked by his CMn ooard to m:-ike recorrmm.dations that would :oossibly 
affect a change in structure when three counties don't want to c.li.ange it and three local 
governrrents in California don't want to change it. Senator Bryan said he was not saying 
to ask Mr. Heikkc1 rot he might nr-:tke recomrendations to thcr,1. Senator Wilson askm if 
.Mr. Befr.ka slnuld sc1y to his bosses they we..re votmg crazy and t.hat they sl:ould balance 
it. Senator \'1ilson said t.hat was just rot realistic. Senator Wilson said they we?re not 
sitting in a vacuum and he thought the camnittee had to look at this. If the corrrnittee 
decides they don't want to do it, fine, but he didn't tJ1ink t'1ey should rationalize it 
as to what recorrmendations Heikka may or rna.y not have made to his ooard or to the 
carmittee. Senator Wilson said he was not at all inipressed hy • the fact that rtr. Heikka 
had not asked his board for recorrmendations. He said the counties were not going to 
ask for changes either because they are satisfied wit11 the status quo. Senator C..ojack 
said she agreed with Se.Tlator l-.Jilson because it was a specious argurrent to say that 
because the comnittee rad not heard from t.li.e TRPA itself, tli.at t'1ere a.re not proh1e.'"!1S.· 
She said they !1ad heard testirrony from ot.½er people who recognize t.li.at there is a pro­
ble"TI. She said another thing t.'1a t bot.tiered her was the relationship between the cnmt_y 
and the state as if it were the same kind of sovereignty between the state and the 
federal governrrent. She said it was dead wrong to make t.li.ose kind of corrparisons. 
Senator Sheerin said that was why he was willing to do sorret.,ing with N'l'R.l?l\ because it 
is a regional problem. Senator Hilson asked what they should do about tl-ie overdevelop­
nent in California. He also said that if they were going to agonize about whether there 
is a balance on t.11e Nevada side we should do it with the fact in Mind that :NTR~7\ has 
limited jurisdiction. Senator l·7ilson said that NTRPA is only for gamlllg and state 
license of business. He said t.li.ey oould deal with NTRPA in the limited area of g?.JTti.ng. 
Senator IX>d:3e said maybe that was an :indication that the same :influences are creating 
the proliferation on the california side. 

ove,, 

462 

dmayabb
Senate EPR

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
March 21, 1975



) 

) 

) 

Senator Wilson said they should lay down the same .invitation to them by inviting tliern 
to anerrl their compact. He said we could deal with NTF?.A as well, but invite California 
to amend their compact to create a better balance on t'1e California side. Senator D:xlge 
said the only thing is that there you have the unique situation \-mere yoo are endangering 
sovereignty. Senator Wilson said he was on!.y talki'1g alx:>ut ~. rrernbership question. 
He said it was in our CM1 .interest if we are goi.'"lg to increase our size to ask them to 
increase their size. If they fail to ratify then we are left witl1 whatever inprovernents 
can be made to NTRPA. 

Senator Blakenore said that Senator Wilson and Senator Cojack !llade the perfect argur.ent 
for wi tJrlrawing from TRPA. Senator Wilson said he didn't t11ink so. There was a short 

di scussion on this. 

Senator Ibdge said he was sorry there hadn't been rrore input on this to the rorrmi ttee. 
Senator Sheerin said he felt there was a balance now because sate projects have gone 
through and sore projects have been denied. He felt it couldn't be all one way or all 
the other way. Senator \vilson said he felt the question that they should all ask them­
selves is whether they are satisfied with what's happening at the Lake ncu. Senator 
Cbjack said if that was true, according to Nalt McKenzie's testinony, he has voted both 
ways. Senator Sheerin said he thought every vote Mr. !tKenzie rrade was against gaming. 
Gary Owens said he believed that Mr. ~enzie did vote yes on one gaming issue. 

Senator Blakenore said he felt there should be an evaluation ir1 conjunction with sor:eone 
from California, and spoke briefly about this. 

Senator Ibdge suggested that the delegation be rcude up of th;rce elected representatives, 
three ap[X)inted rcpresentati ves and the lieutenant governor. Senator !·Tilson said that 
if the conntl.ttce is willing to change the base, Califonria should be given the opportun­
ity to change its base. Senator D:>dgc asked if the California 'f'R0 A is the sarre. Mr. 
~ns said the CTRPA has seven ITCJTibcrs, five of which belong to the bi-state agency. 
The sixth is appointed by the governor and the six ch:x>se tl-c revcnth. Mr. CMens said 
he has dmlth with the broadened CTRPJ\ for about eight or nine nonth5. lie said that they 
arc at a point of being duplicative arrl yet, they have the situation where you can hc:-.ivc 
diverse dcclnions. Ile felt there was a possibility of SOl!l2tr~ having a legal disnutc 
as to who has suprcnncy on tl1e California side of the hlsin. Senator Dodge said the 
CTRPl\ is on a much. bro.:,<lcr rosis of c1uthoritv that what we .:ire talking alx>ut on the 
Nevada side. Mr. CMens said they have the sane po..,rcrs as the hi-state agency on the 

463 

dmayabb
Senate EPR

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
March 21, 1975



) 

) 

) 

Page Ei<jht 
3-21-75 
F.nvironrrcnt and Public Rcsrurccs 

3,~."' '- ',_ 

California side. Senator IX>elgc said tile NTRPA docs not, and Mr. Owens s.:.iid that was 
correct. Mr. Owens said the one in limbo dCXJs, but it will only be cn;ictc<l if the bi­
state agency is ever dissolvcxl. Ile said the current operative N'rnPA is quite limit('(]. 
Senator Ibdge said he doubted you would have the.&'l!TC OJ,:X?rativc problems lh~t you would 
have expanding ,the N'l'RPA. 

· Senator Wilson said he felt this was tl-e only area of ronsensus the cxmnittce h.:ir.; r.c-.ched 
at this point. Senator Bryan asked v.hy they didn't go with the bi-state. Senator 0lake­
nore said that \o.Ouldn' t accomplish anything. Senator \·lilson said it doesn't nake cnv 
sense not to increase the bi-state agency. Sena.tor Dodge said he \o.Ould consider tc1king 
a look at the bi-state agency m.::mrership, but he felt the problem was the one mile zone 
at the south end of the Lake. Senator Bryan said Senator Wilson had spoken to the im­
pact of the problem on the California side. Senator Blakenore said he still felt that 
they were not going to accomplish anything, 

Senator \·lilson said they should talk about developing sare checks and balances, increasing 
the lll'RPA, problems on the other side of the Lake. Senator Wilson said if you were going 
to increase the nei-rbership of the NTRPA, you are rot conpounding your problems by in­
creasing the California TRPA. He said you were talking arout the sane people. Senator 
Sheerin said as far as the CTRPA, he understood they are row being nore restrictive than 
the bi-state agency. Senator IX>dge said in theory that ,-.ould seem to check out. Senator 
Wilson said :rraybe they should have Mr. DeRicco poll the California IYEITbers (CTRPA) . 

Senator Ibdge cited the exarrple of the north end of the Lake. He said the interests of 
Washoe County in that situation might not sound synonynous with the others and you might 
conceivably, with the present mike-up, throw a balance as far as t.l)e Nevada side, :to 
whatever action they try to take to hold do.-m the pollution on the Truckee River. He 
said he felt that \o.Ould be of concern to the Washoe County representative. Senator 
Wilson_ said he was talking abcut the Nevada delegation. Senator IX>dge said that was 
right. Senator Wilson said he agreed with that and the source of the pollution problem 
does not lie in Nevada. Senator Dodge said he realized that. Senator IX>dge said what 
he was asking was could they make a case for the chance we are going to get a better 
solution to it by expansion of the :rrernbership. Senator Wilson said he didn't know 
whether, the densities were going to be reduced or not increased. Senator IX>dge said 
if you mule. get. m:n:·e µ.iblic repl'."E.:sentation as looking at a broader perspective in the 
environmental problems, IlBybe that would be a solution. Senator Wilson said one of the 
problems is that you create an improvenent district, such as sewage, and nonetarily the 
econanics require a large numl::er of lots being inproved. Senator Sheerin asked if the 
sewer situation was pretty well taken care of. Senator Wilson said yes, they were under 
an ex.IX)rt mandate. What they did was collect from Tahoe City clear down around the 
west side of the lake. Senator Wilson discussed the sewage system. Senator Sheerin 
said that the sewer systan was already set up and funded and it was just a matter of 
building it. 

oye.,,-
464 

dmayabb
Senate EPR



) 

) 

) 

) 

Sena.tor D:xlge said that whatever they did within the basin, it W01ld not offer any de­
veloi:nental control over residential areas outside- the basin, so you still have that 
problem. Senator Wilson arrl Senator DJdge discussed and determined this was sanething 
that Mr. DeR.icro should report to the coomittee on. Senator D:>dge stated again that 
he didn't th.ink the climate was right to arrend the carrpact and said the nost damaging 
thing was Mr. Heikka' s testinony. Senator DJdge said the rrerrbers of the agency have 
to have cornron objectives and if, in the carrying out of those obj~tives, t.hey haven't 
experienced difficulties mechanically, it doesn't indicate a corrpelling need for change. 
Senator Sheerin said when things are being approved and things are being decided, that 
is a balance. 

Senator Blakenore asked about the people that live in the area. He said there were lots 
of problems. He stated again that he thought there should be an overview corrmittee or 
sorre camunication should be had with the C'.alifornia Legislature_. Senator Wilson said 
he could tell him how the California pmple felt, but he t11ooght they should answer their 
own questions first. He said if the corrmittce was concerned about ho.v California feels, 
he could talk to them about that. SEnator Blakerrore said he definitely thought there 
was a problem. Senator Dodge said the California nanbers hadn't shown either way. 
Senator Blakenore said that was true. Senator Wilson asked if he was referring to the 
agency ment>ers. Senator Blakarore said he was referring to Mr. Heikka' s testinony which 
they heard previously, in which Mr. Heikka stated he was perfonning his job and had made 
progress. Senator Dodge said he thought they should hoor fran Mr. Jx>.Ricco again re­
garding the California members reactions to the ideas that had been discussed. Senator 
Ibdge w-1s ai:pointcd to call Mr. DcR.i.cco and ask h~ to coire and testify. It was decided 
to hear from Mr. DcRicoo on l'-bnday, M:rrch 24, 1975, at 5:00 p.m. for the purpose stated 
above. 

tic rrceting adjourned at 3:45 p.m. 

.l\PP.oovF.D BY : 

Rcspcctfully su~ --,_J _ 
Knstim ZolU10.r ~~ -- -· 

, 

465 

dmayabb
Senate EPR

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
March 21, 1975



380 

( 
----

~-) l' l nJ 
'J' . 1 . . . , .. ' ;_ ... · , · · " l r ·.• l · , ; •:, ~ 1 

"- r' ' • \.- •' \ ( ~ -\, 

--- ' _____ ., __ ,.. -------- -·-------- ---··--- ----- ___ ,. ____________________ .,. ______ -------------------- . 

·-· ____ ,,_ ·.. _______ .., ___ _ 

____ ,.... _____________ ----- ·-- ·--- -- ----------------- ----------------...-.. -------·· ------------~----------·---•-•··- .. -- ..... ~.~ --,~ - -

... ---------------
-( ·--··-·-------------·•--·· --- ------ -------------· .. --------------------- ----------·--------

----------------------- ----------~--· ·. -... -- .;;-.... ' ----·.,. -------

----------- -- ~- ---~-.,.--- --- -------' 
, 

-------- __________ ,. ________ ----------------------- - ------- ----·-------------·-- _________ .,.....,. ____ .. -----.---

_______ ,_ __ .__ --------~--- ' ---- ... i.,...,. ... ---·--- .. --. - -- --- ....... - .. --

-------------------·----------------------------------------

·-·------ ---~---..----- ---- ----- - ______ .,_ ------------- ------------------
----·•-------- ·-----------------· -~, -------------.. -. -~ ~- ---- ..... ------..J,;,.,;. 

. -- . ------------- -------------'----------------------J-~ -~·,.,-------
-·---·-·- --··----·--·--·--·-·-·------·------------··---------------------------- -·· ___________ ..,._- ----. --

( 




